UNITED
NATIONS CEDAW

Convention on the Elimination _
of All Forms of Discrimination CENERAL
against Women

CEDAW C/ SR. 302
6 February 1996

ORI G NAL: ENGLI SH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF DI SCRI M NATI ON AGAI NST WOVEN
Fi fteenth session
SUVMARY RECORD OF THE 302nd MEETI NG

Hel d at Headquarters, New York,
on Monday, 29 January 1996, at 10.15 a.m

Chai rperson: M. CORTI

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 18 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (cont i nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be subnmitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to the
Chief, Oficial Records Editing Section, Ofice of Conference and Support
Services, room DC2-794, 2 United Nations Pl aza.

Any corrections to the records of the meetings of this session will be
consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly after the end of the
sessi on.

96- 80180 (E) /...



CEDAW C/ SR. 302
Engl i sh
Page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 18 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (cont i nued)

Third periodic report of Ukraine (CEDAW C/ UKR/ 3 and Add. 1)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, Ms. Bogatyryova (Ukraine) took a
place at the Committee table.

2. Ms. BOGATYRYOVA (Ukraine) said that since the report's subm ssion in 1991

t here had been far-reaching changes in the constitutional status of Ukraine and
in its socio-economc developnent. |In that year, the people of Ukraine had
exercised their right of self-determnation, and Ukrai ne had becone an

i ndependent denocratic State. As of 1 January 1995, the popul ati on of Ukraine
had been 51.7 mllion: 46 per cent nmen and 54 per cent wonen. Children under
the age of 16 constituted 21.9 per cent and the working popul ation 55.7 per cent
of the total. According to the 1989 census, of the adult popul ation,

18.8 mllion wonen and 16 million nmen had conpl eted secondary and hi gher
educati on.

3. For centuries, Ukraine had had a tradition of patriarchy in public affairs
and matriarchy in the famly; as a result, Ukrainian wonmen had never been as
oppressed as wonen in nei ghbouring countries, since inequality in one sphere had
been fully offset by advantages in others. The current situation of wonen in
Ukraine reflected the process of transition froma totalitarian to a denocratic
regi ne and the energence of new trends in the role of women in society. That
was denonstrated, in particular, by the formation of numerous woren's

non- gover nmental organi zati ons, the enmergence of wonmen busi ness | eaders and an
overall increase in the public activity of wonen.

4. National machinery for ensuring equal rights and equal opportunities for
wonmen was currently being established. A Committee on Wonen, Mdthers and

Chil dren had been established under the President of Wkraine. The Committee's
main tasks were to study the social situation of wonen, to prepare proposals for
i mproving that situation and ensuring State protection of the interests of
famlies and children, to establish a favourabl e denographic situation in
Ukraine and to introduce into Ukraine the best national and world expertise in
the |l egal and social protection of wonen.

5. In the Suprenme Council of Ukraine, there was a Standi ng Comm ssion on
Questions of Health, Mdthers and Children and a subconmi ssion on the | ega
protection of the rights of wonen, the famly and children. The Cabi net of

M nisters had a division for wonen's affairs and protection of the famly,

not hers and children. In the regions, there were structural subdivisions for
wonen's and famly affairs. Wthin the Mnistries of Labour, Health and Socia
Wel fare, there were units or divisions concerned with inproving the situation of
wonen, famlies and children.

6. In the legislation of Ukraine, there was nothing that directly contradicted
t he Convention; that had been confirnmed in parlianmentary hearings on Ukraine's

l...



CEDAW C/ SR. 302
Engl i sh
Page 3

conpliance with the provisions of the Convention, held on 12 July 1995. Menbers
of the Government, heads of mnistries and departnents, representatives of the
Counci| of Europe and representatives of wonen's organi zati ons had taken part in
the hearings. It had been noted that wonen were underrepresented in nanageria
positions and in the State adm nistration and that there was a tendency to
prefer nmen to wonen for nanagerial positions even if they had the sane
qualifications. Wnen were underrepresented in political structures and State
executive bodies: there were no wonen ministers and there were only 17 wonen in
Parliament, corresponding to 4 per cent of the total nunber of deputies. There
were no wonmen in the Presidiumof the Supreme Council of Ukraine. Meanwhil e,
wonmen constituted the majority of staff menbers in such State executive bodies
as the Mnistries of Statistics, Finance, Health, Education and Labour

7. The participants in the parlianentary hearings had recommended that a
provi sion should be introduced into the draft of the new Constitution
concerning equal rights and freedons for wonen and nen and equal opportunities
to exercise themin accordance with international human rights standards. It
had al so been recommended that, in order to ensure the equitable representation
of wormen and nen, the new el ectoral |aw should provide for the right of woren's
publ i ¢ organi zations, novenents and blocs to put forward candidates for the
Suprenme Council of Ukraine and ot her el ected bodies.

8. Ukr ai ne afforded wonen equal rights and opportunities in the areas of
education and specialized training, |abour, renmuneration, pronotion and

soci o-political and cultural activities and al so i npl enented speci al nmeasures to
protect the [ abour and health of wonmen, enable wonen to conbine work with
not her hood, and extend | egal protection and nmaterial and noral support to

not hers and children. It had adopted a nunber of l|egal instrunments to inprove
the situation of wonmen, famlies and children, including the 1992 |aw on State
assistance to famlies with children, the long-termprograme to inprove the
situation of wonmen, 1992-2000, and the national family planning programe of
1995.

9. By |law, nothers were entitled to partially paid |eave to care for a child
up to the age of three and were able to work part tinme. Wnen were entitled to
an ol d-age pension at the age of 55 after at |east 20 years' service. Wnen
with five or nore children or disabled children were entitled to a pension at
the age of 50 after at |east 15 years' service. Leave taken to care for
children was included in calculating the length of service. Non-enployed and
di sabl ed wonen received a social pension at the age of 55.

10. The law on State assistance to famlies with children provided partia
conpensation for the pay of nmothers who were not engaged in social production
because they were caring for a child under the age of three, and nonetary
paynents for families with three or nore children. Under |abour law, the

enpl oynment of women in heavy work or work in harnful or dangerous conditions was
prohi bi ted; changes were to be made to the legislation on night work by wonmen to
bring it into line with the Convention

11. Although Wkrai ne had a devel oped social welfare system at a tinme of
economc crisis it did not have sufficient State resources to fully finance its
soci al programes, which consequently were often ineffective. The econonic
crisis particularly affected worki ng wonen and young people. Despite her



CEDAW C/ SR. 302
Engl i sh
Page 4

CGovernnment's efforts to inprove the situation of the nost vul nerabl e segnments of
t he popul ati on, poverty and unenpl oyment were becoming a real threat, especially
to wonen. O every 10 registered unenpl oyed persons, 7 were wonen, of whom 4
had children under the age of 16.

12. A State enploynent progranmme was drawn up each year and covered questions
of enploynment, job placenment and training. Wnen received specialized training
in educational institutions or in the workplace and also in the training centres
of the enploynent services. |n regional enploynent centres, wonen were sel ected
for training in entrepreneurial activity. Training for girls in occupations
associ ated with nmodern technology in industry, the service sector and
agriculture was being expanded. Special units existed for the job placenent of
pregnant wormen on the basis of doctors' recomendations.

13. Inadequate budgetary resources for health care had led to a reduction in
guaranteed State nedical care for women and children. Al though wormen's health

i ndicators were better than those for nmen, they had worsened significantly in
recent years. According to 1994 data, |life expectancy had declined by 1.9 years
in urban areas and 1.7 years in rural areas since the beginning of the decade.

Si nce 1990, UWkrai ne had been undergoi ng a severe denopgraphic crisis; the death
rate had exceeded the birth rate for four consecutive years and there had been
an increase in nortality for six years in a row. Mrtality rates for nmen were
nore than three tinmes higher than those for wonen between the ages of 20 and 50
and four tines higher in the 30 to 34 age group. As aresult, the life

expect ancy of women was 10 years nore than that of nen. Morbidity rates for nmen
were al nost twi ce as high as for wonen.

14. Anong girls, the rate of gastric and cardi ovascul ar di seases, anaem a,

ki dney di sease and di seases of the reproductive organs had increased. The rate
of conplications of childbirth had increased from58 per cent in 1990 to

65 per cent in 1994. Abortion had an adverse effect on the health of wonen; in
1994, the nunber of abortions had been 1.5 times the nunber of births. Since
1990, there had been a slight decline in the nunber of abortions.

15. The programe extended to the year 2000 and would formthe basis for
territorial programmes that took into account denographic and religious
characteristics and traditions and were based on cooperation between State
institutions and public and private organi zati ons. The objectives were to
reduce maternal and child nortality, inprove health indicators, provide health
care for famlies and wonmen and engage in international cooperation. Since
1993, a network of famly planning offices had been built up. As of 1995 there
had been 8 regional centres, 12 urban centres and 5 |aboratories. Medical and
genetic care was al so needed to cope with the growi ng incidence of congenita
and ot her diseases resulting fromthe Chernobyl disaster and its aftermath. A
system of nedical genetic centres had been established which provided

counsel l'ing and prenatal screening for birth defects to 70,000 fam |lies each
year.

16. In the near future, Wkraine planned to conplete the establishnment of
national machinery to ensure equal rights and opportunities for nen and wonen at
all levels of power; develop a single State policy for the overall solution of

problens involved in the elimnation of discrimnation agai nst wonen; i npl ement
a national famly planning programme and a national programe for children



CEDAW C/ SR. 302
Engl i sh
Page 5

study the experience of European countries and the Council of Europe and draft a
bill on the equal rights and social partnership of wonen and nen; and organi ze a
networ k of establishments to which wonen and children could go for psychol ogi ca
and nedi cal assistance. The main goal was to devel op strategies for pronoting
the active integration of wonen in the devel opnent process on an equal basis
with men.

17. Turning to the Committee's general comments and its questions on specific
articles, she said that Wkraine's fourth report had been prepared in accordance
with the Committee's guidelines. The draft of the new Constitution was to be
considered in April 1996; it included a provision on equal rights and freedons
for wonen and nen and equal opportunities to exercise themin accordance with

i nternational human rights standards. Once the Constitution had been adopted, a
copy woul d be sent to the Committee.

18. In the course of the hearings on the inplenentation of the Convention,
there had been an analysis of the de jure and de facto situation of Ukrainian
worren whi ch had shown that there were substantial differences between |ega
provisions and their inplenentation. The Presidiumof the Supreme Council had
decided to make an in-depth study of the situation in each sector, to take the
necessary steps to renedy that situation, and to hold further hearings to

nmoni tor the progress nade.

19. Recalling that the Commttee had requested a summary of the report
presented by Ukraine at the Fourth World Conference on Winen and had asked for
further details of the commtments which Ukraine had nmade in Beijing, she said
that the Ukrainian report to the Conference had described the overal
deterioration of the situation of women, the decline in the standard of Iiving,
and the worseni ng denographic situation resulting fromecononi ¢ problens and the
i npact of the Chernobyl disaster, which continued to consune significant
budgetary resources. On the other hand, the Ukrainian Governnent had
establ i shed special structures to inprove the situation of wonen. It had
ratified a conprehensive long-term State programme to i nprove the situation of
wonen and to protect nothers and children. It had al so adopted a nationa

fam ly planning programme and was continuing to provide all wonen with free
nedi cal treatment. Wkraine had stated its willingness to adopt nmeasures to

i nprove the situation of wonmen and children; despite the financial cost

i nvolved, it had effectively enbarked on such programes.

20. Regarding the specific conmmtnents nade at Beijing, the principle of equa
opportunity at all levels of decision-making had been secured at the nationa

| evel by the establishnment in 1995 of a Conmittee on Whnen, Mthers and Children
under the authority of the Ukrainian President, and a Standi ng Comm ssion on
Questions of Health, Mdthers and Children had been established in the Suprene
Council. The Cabinet of Mnisters had a division for wonen's affairs and
protection of the famly, nothers and children. A network of regiona

structures dealing directly with wonen's issues was in the process of being
devel oped, and 11 of UWkraine's 27 regions had already been provided with a
regional infrastructure.

21. The national famly planning programme had been adopted in 1995. Steps
taken to hel p enabl e women to have a pernmanent source of incorme had included the
formul ation of a |ong-term programe establishing enpl oynent centres.



CEDAW C/ SR. 302
Engl i sh
Page 6

Incentives and benefits were provided to enterprises and organi zati ons which
hired women with small children by offering them part-time enpl oynment and
flexible working hours. The enploynent centres tried to fill vacancies with
singl e wonen, wi dows, wonen with large famlies, wonen with disabled children or
wonmen who had been previously laid off. They also offered retraining and

skil | s-enhancenent programes. |n addition, they were required to fill at |east
5 per cent of all vacancies with candi dates from "socially vul nerabl e popul ati on
groups", although in the current difficult econonmic climate it had not al ways
proved possible to nmeet that target.

22. Providing further information on access by wonen and children to | ega
neasures at | ow cost, she explained that free | egal advice had fornerly been
avail abl e to wonen in the workplace, but that the situation had changed sonmewhat
owing to the difficult econom c circunstances. Such advice was now generally
available for a small fee, but it continued to be provided free of charge for
certain categories of wonen. Nevertheless, the Governnment was trying to broaden
the scope of free legal consultations for wonen.

23. On the question of fundamental discrepancies between the constitutional and
de facto rights of wonen, including econom c and enpl oynent constraints,

i nadequat e soci al services, inappropriate policies and out nbded stereotypes, she
said that article 22 of the Ukrainian Labour Code prohibited gender-based
violations of a woman's right to be hired for work. A special unit affiliated
to the Council of Mnisters was working in conjunction with other government

bodi es to ensure that wonen's social and | egal guarantees were respected and
that progress would continue to be made in that sphere.

Article 3

24. Commenting on questions raised in relation to article 3, she said that the
Ukr ai ni an Government had attenpted to offset the burden of work faced by wonen
and its adverse effects on their health by offering incentives and benefits to
enterprises and organi zations that hired wonen with small children by offering
them part-time work or flexible working hours. Plans were al so under way to
make shorter working hours for wonen conpul sory, regardless of their age and
whet her or not they had children.

25. The governnent departnent responsible for coordinating policies and
programes related to wonen was the Winen's Conmittee under the Ukrainian
President, which was made up of representatives of wonen's non-governnent al
organi zations and representatives of the executive branch. The Committee was
currently focusing its efforts on fornmulating a new draft code relating to the
famly and marriage and on proposing anendnents to the | ong-term programme for

i mproving the situation of wonen, adopted in 1992. The main el ement of the

| ong-term programre, which was intended to alleviate factors that discrimnated
agai nst wonen at work and in the hone, was the wonen's enpl oynment programe,
designed to fill job vacancies with fermal e candi dates and retrain wonen who had
been laid off during the restructuring of enterprises or organizations.

26. Itens which had been submtted to the Suprene Council by the Comm ssion on
Wnen's Affairs and Protection of the Family, Mthers and Children included the
provision of social protection for large famlies, the formulation of a State
famly planning programme, the ratification of the | ong-term programme for



CEDAW C/ SR. 302
Engl i sh
Page 7

i nproving the situation of wonen, nothers and children, the fornulation of a
speci al enpl oynent programme, and the formnul ation and introduction into schoo
curricula of a sex education programme for children and adol escents.

27. Responding to an inquiry about what actions had been taken to dissem nate

i nformation on wonen's rights, she said that there had been increased activity

on the part of wonen's non-governnental organizations, which had held a nunber

of sem nars and round-table conferences on a range of issues affecting wonen in
Ukrai ne. Proposed anendnents to | egislation affecting the situation of wonen,

and the question of the famly code in particular, had been di scussed with

non- gover nrent al organi zati ons.

Article 4

28. Commenting on questions raised in relation to article 4, she said that the
Ukr ai ni an Gover nment had addressed femal e unenpl oynent by creating the special
enpl oyment centres nmentioned earlier. Those centres selected qualified wonen
candi dates and directed themtowards careers in economc-related fields. 1In
addi ti on, nmeasures had been taken to educate wonen through the mass nedi a about
their rights in the workplace. Lastly, an inspectorate of the enpl oynent
service was responsi ble for ensuring conpliance with |abour laws. 1In 1995, a
total of 11,000 individuals had been penalized for violating enploynent |aws on
grounds of gender.

Article 5
29. Inrelation to article 5 she said that statistics on the probl em of
donmestic violence were still |acking because the necessary procedures for

gat hering and processing data had not yet been put in place; she hoped to be
able to provide the Committee with detailed figures at a |ater date.

Article 6

30. Responding to questions about prostitution and sex crinmes, she expl ai ned
that Ukraine's Crimnal Code did not outlaw prostitution as such; prostitutes
were nerely fined. However, crimnal charges could be brought for brothel-
keepi ng and for physical abuse of a wife by her husband. Crimnal sentences
were al so mandatory for sex crinmes. Any rape was considered a crimnal offence
regardl ess of whether it had been perpetrated by the husband or another party.
On the matter of |aw enforcenment neasures taken to deal with the internationa
trafficking and sexual exploitation of Ukrainian wonen, she adnmitted that the
problem was intractable. Wnen were often lured abroad of their own free wll
with fal se prom ses of enploynent, and | aw enforcenent agencies could intervene
only when they were reported as mi ssing persons, when they committed a crinme or
when they thensel ves becane victins of crine. Although the probl em of
international trafficking in women had not formed part of the Government's anti -
crinme programre for 1993-1995, val uable cooperation with Interpol had uncovered
a nunber of sex crines involving Wkrainian women in the Netherlands, Turkey and
Cyprus. A nunber of Wkrainian citizens currently faced procurenent charges as a
result of those operations.



CEDAW C/ SR. 302

Engl i sh
Page 8
Article 7

31. Commenting on various questions raised in connection with article 7, she
said that there were still conparatively few wonen in Parliament and that
practically all of themheld senior posts in various parties and public

organi zations. Neverthel ess, the denocratic transformations in Ukraine had
encour aged broad participation by wonen in all spheres of public life. \Whereas
only 11 wonmen's non-governmental organi zati ons had been registered in 1992, by
1996 that nunmber had risen to approxi mately 70.

Article 8

32. As far as participation by wonen in the Ukrainian Mnistry of Foreign
Affairs was concerned, she indicated that 42 per cent of Mnistry enpl oyees were
worren. Sone 14 per cent of enployees in the Mnistry's central apparatus were
worren, and 10 wonen were currently serving in the Ukrainian diplomatic corps.

Article 9

33. Followi ng the procl amati on of independence, Ukraine had enacted a new | aw
whi ch stipul ated that wonen enjoyed equality with nen in respect of their own
and their children's nationality. The marriage of a WUkrainian citizen to a
foreign national or stateless person did not entail a change in the nationality
of the Wkrainian citizen, nor did a change in the nationality of one spouse
entail a change in that of the other. Wth the consent of both parents, a child
could acquire Ukrainian nationality if either parent did so and coul d keep that
nationality even if one parent renounced it.

Article 10

34. There was no gender-based discrimnation in the right to education, and
that equality extended to curricula, textbooks, teachers, teaching nethods and
technical facilities. Wth regard to the statenent in paragraph 77 of the
addendumthat girls were not allowed to enrol in the translation departments of
| anguage schools, she said that the statenment referred to the translation
departnments of mlitary academ es, which did not admit girls because their
graduates i medi ately entered the arned services, from which wonen were
excluded. There was no such discrimnation in civilian education. Wth regard

toilliteracy rates, she said that 10 years of schooling were mandatory for both
sexes.
Article 11

35. Wonen who worked in the private sector received the sane benefits as those
in the public sector. During the first half of 1995, wonmen had accounted for
45.2 per cent of workers in industry, 42.1 per cent in agriculture,

17.9 per cent in forestry, 18 per cent in fisheries, 28.8 per cent in transport,
26.7 per cent in construction, 67.1 per cent in communications, 77.7 per cent in
trade, 86.1 per cent in food services, 73.3 per cent in information and conputer
services, 59.4 per cent in the production of consunmer goods, 74.7 per cent in
education, 50.6 per cent in science and scientific services, 76.6 per cent in
finance, credit and insurance and 54.2 per cent in admnistration.



CEDAW C/ SR. 302
Engl i sh
Page 9

36. It was illegal to discrinmnate in offers of enploynent or in salary against
pregnant women, nothers of children under three years of age, or single nothers
of children under the age of 14 or disabled children. Wen a worman in those
categories was refused enploynment, a witten justification nust be submtted and
could be challenged in court. |If such a woman was di sm ssed because the

busi ness whi ch enpl oyed her ceased to exist, another job nust be found for her

37. Wth regard to parental rights, she said that nmen and wonen had equa
rights to the custody of their children. The anmount of |eave granted for child
care depended on a worman's |l ength of service; women who interrupted their
careers for long periods of tine to stay hone with children were also entitled
to special consideration

38. The percentage of the population living below the poverty line was 7.5 for
wonmen and 4.0 for men. Wynmen accounted for 62.5 per cent of persons aged 55 or
ol der. Al though Wkraine had experienced a negative birth rate over the past
four years, there was still a shortage of preschool establishments in certain
regions. Over the long term the State intended to allocate funds for the

mai nt enance of such establishments. There were also informal arrangenents anong
wonmen who provided child care

39. The problemof job safety affected both nen and wonen. The restrictions on
ni ght work applied only to pregnant wonen and to nothers of disabled children or
children under 14 years of age. Oher wonen were permtted to work at night and
in jobs that were not classified as hazardous.

40. Wth regard to gender-related pay disparities, the statistics for the first
hal f of 1995 showed that wonen earned a hi gher average wage than nen in only 2
of 25 enpl oynment sectors. There was equal pay for equal work, but nen were able
to put in nore overtinme hours because wonen were responsible for child care and
ot her domestic tasks. However, there were serious wage distortions; in

i ndustry, for exanple, wonmen's average wages had been 1.5 tines those of nen in
the first half of 1995.

Article 12

41. \Wkraine had a systemof State prenatal care, which was provided through a
network of wonen's clinics, polyclinics, maternity honmes and childbirth centres
and whose coverage was al nost universal

42. Wkraine did not produce its own contraceptives and the allocations provided
for their purchase did not cover their actual cost. Famly planning services
were avail able at no charge and were provided in all regions. However, in rura
areas they were often scattered and there m ght be no public transport

avai | abl e. Sex education programmes in schools, a recent innovation, instructed
children at | evels appropriate to their age on sexuality and sexually
transmtted di seases, including H V/ Al DS

Article 13

43. Wonen and nen had equal access to |oans and bank credits for business
activities.



CEDAW C/ SR. 302

Engl i sh
Page 10
Article 14

44. Recent |egislation had nade the problens of rural areas a priority. The
CGovernment was attenpting to provide rural areas with a better resource base and
an inproved infrastructure and to reduce outward mgration, especially by young
worren. There were 9 mllion wonen living in rural areas, accounting for

54 per cent of the rural population

Article 16

45. There had been a total of 207,600 divorces during 1994. Men and wonen had
equal rights to the joint marital property in the event of divorce, and each
spouse had an equal right to own, use and di spose of such property even if one
spouse had worked at home, had | ooked after the children or for any other valid
reason had not worked during the marriage. Property owned by one spouse prior
to the marriage, or acquired during the marriage by gift or inheritance,

remai ned the property of that spouse. A disabled spouse who was in need of
financi al assistance, or who becane di sabled within one year of a divorce, had a
right to continued maintenance fromthe other spouse, and the courts were
responsi bl e for enforcement. An individual who abused, or failed to exercise,
his or her parental rights could be deprived of them

46. The mininmum | egal age for nmarriage was 17 for girls and 18 for boys. In
special situations, girls as young as 15 might be permtted to marry. In recent
years, the marriage rate had decreased and the divorce rate had increased. The
basi c reasons for the rising divorce rate were the overall situation of

political and economic instability, lowincones, difficult living conditions and
envi ronnental problens, and inadequate nutrition for children

47. The CHAI RPERSON noted that, in the years since it had achi eved

i ndependence, UWkraine had suffered fromthe current economic crisis and fromthe
problems typically associated with the transition to denocracy. Although wonen
al ways suffered nore than nmen in such situations, it was clear that progress had
been nmade. She praised the |egislative changes that had benefited women and

wel coned Ukraine's decision to subnmit to the Conmittee its new Constitution
currently in draft form which would offer increased guarantees for wonen's
rights. She was pleased that Ukraine had stressed the inmportance of the
Committee as a human rights treaty body and that it had organi zed a
parlianmentary hearing on the Convention in 1995. She felt that there was reason
to hope that the work of the Committee, and the provisions of the Convention
woul d beconme wi dely known and would hel p Wkraine in its progress towards gender
equality.

48. The | arge nunber of questions asked in response to the report reflected the
Committee's concern for the status of wonen in the Eastern European countries
during their transition to denocracy and a narket econony. Despite the progress
made in WUkraine, it appeared that nmuch remained to be done. The Committee was
concerned at the statement that women's problens nust be tenporarily set aside
as Ukraine attenpted to inplenment structural adjustnent policies. Such policies
were affecting wonen throughout the world, but it was inportant for |egislators
to attenpt to avoid their adverse consequences. One such consequence was the
enor nous gender disparity in the area of decision-nmaking, and she suggested that



CEDAW C/ SR. 302
Engl i sh
Page 11

Ukrai ne mght work with the Council of Europe, which had proposed a nunber of
nmeasures to deal with the problem

49. She noted that Wkraine was in a state of denographic crisis; the nortality
rate for men was three times higher than that for wonen, while the nunber of
abortions exceeded the nunber of births. She hoped that neasures woul d be taken
to correct that situation. However, she advised caution with regard to the
country's many provisions for the protection of nmothers and children; such
neasures were inportant, but it nust be remenbered that wonmen were not nerely
not hers but people in their own right.

50. The Committee had been particularly concerned at the probl em of
prostitution and viol ence agai nst wonen, but she felt that, in view of the
i npressive progress already nade in that area, the country's next periodic
report would reflect an inprovenent in the situation

51. Ms. BUSTELO GARCI A DEL REAL wel cormed the fact that nmen and women enj oyed an
equal Iy high I evel of education in Ukraine and that Ukrainian |egislation
refl ected the provisions of the Convention in that regard.

52. Wth respect to article 5, however, she wondered whet her the neasures taken
to protect wonen in the workplace mght not work to their detrinment, since, in a
mar ket econony, experience suggested that wonen mght sinply not be hired if
there were restrictions on their enploynment. In any event, with the advent of
new t echnol ogy, restrictions on heavy work mght equally well be applied to nen
Wth regard to article 5 (b), she asked what was being done to pronpte the
sharing of child care by nen

53. She asked why the mnimum age for marriage was not the same for nen and
wonmen, since that contravened the Committee's recommendations. Lastly, at a
tinme of transition, it wuld be advantageous for wonen to becone nore active in
political life and deci sion-naki ng.

54. Ms. KHAN noted that, while there were a nunber of bodies concerned with
wonen' s i ssues, nost of them seenmed to concentrate on welfare rather than
enpower nent. That was a stereotypi cal approach. The provisions of article 5 of
t he Convention were inportant for pronoting equality during the transition and
for attenpting to nodify social and cultural patterns. |In that regard, there
seened to be a heavy enphasis on notherhood - for exanple, pension benefits for
women with nore than five children - while there was no nention of fatherhood in
that connection. |In Ukraine, stereotypes seened to be reinforced by el enents as
di verse as school textbooks and even tel evision progranmes.

55. Wth respect to sexually oriented viol ence agai nst wonen, she asked whet her
statistics on rape were conprehensive and how they were collected. On the
question of trafficking in wonen, even when wonen chose to engage in
prostitution there was generally an econom c notive; in nmany cases, WONMEn were
lured by organized crinme groups offering the prospect of normal enploynent, only
to find thensel ves entrapped.

56. Ms. BERNARD asked how wi fe battering and incest were dealt with in the
courts, what the attitude of the judiciary was in such cases and whet her any
nmeasures were being taken in that regard. Wth respect to article 12, she noted

/...



CEDAW C/ SR. 302
Engl i sh
Page 12

that there had been an increase in suicide and al cohol -rel ated deaths and
wonder ed whet her that coul d be expl ai ned by econom c conditions in the country,
and whet her there were rehabilitation facilities to assist wonmen facing al coho
and drug abuse probl ens.

57. Ms. MAKINEN said that she was concerned at the stereotyping suggested by
the focus on wonmen as nothers. She would wel cone information in the next report
on wonen with disabilities and wonen victins of violence. There seened to be a
need for nore gender disaggregated data. Lastly, she hoped that the next report
woul d give information on wonen in mnority groups, particularly the Crinmean
Tatars.

58. Ms. SHALEV noted that the |egislation adopted to protect women not only
represented stereotyping but also was not very effective froma public health
standpoint. Men and women nust enjoy reproductive freedom wi t hout
discrimnation. |In that regard, she noted that the Beijing Platformfor Action
had called for the devel opnent of policies allow ng wonen to take responsibility
for their own health. Wth respect to the | abour market, the freedom of the

i ndi vidual to make choices nmust be the basis of Government policy.

59. The limted availability of contraceptives in rural areas gave cause for
concern, as did the rates of abortion and maternal nortality. There was a clear
need for inproved famly planning services. Men's nortality rates were higher

t han those of wonen, suggesting that there were health problens in the workplace
whi ch shoul d be addressed as such. She asked for information on the incidence
of tubercul osis, of which there had been no nmention in the report.

60. Ms. JAVATE DE DIOS said that there was a contradiction between the
denocratization process in Ukraine and the regression in the status of wonen,
whose reduced access to support services and enpl oynment opportunities was bad
for Wkrainian society as a whole. The stereotyping of women as nothers was odd
in a denocracy and it appeared that wonmen were being margi nalized econom cal ly.
She trusted that a process of cultural reorientation would soon begin.

61. Prostitution was a serious problemboth in WUkraine and abroad and the
necessary | egislation was | acking. Ukraine m ght consider seeking internationa
assistance in order to tackle the issue. The inpact of environnental disasters
on the reproductive health of wonen had becone a concern sonme 10 years earlier
and she asked what neasures were being taken to assist in rehabilitation and to
avoi d new di sasters.

62. Ms. ABAKA noted, in connection with article 12, the provision of
preferential pensions to wormen who had given birth to five or nore children. In
that regard, the maternal nortality rate was increasing and anaem a was a nmj or
cause of death, a trend which mght well be related to the focus on wonen as

nmot hers. At the same time, health services were deteriorating under the inpact
of structural adjustnent neasures. The Ukrainian view of pregnhancy seemed to be
that it was tantanmbunt to a di sease, although in reality it was a nornma

function and healt hy women should be able to carry on working. Lastly, she
noted that, in accordance with the commtnments nade at Beijing, there was a need
for a new fam |y code that would work to the benefit of wonen's health.



CEDAW C/ SR. 302
Engl i sh
Page 13

63. The CHAI RPERSON said she trusted that the Committee's comments woul d hel p
to inmprove the status of wonen in Ukraine.

64. Ms. BOGATYRYOVA (Ukraine) said that all the Commttee's observations had
been noted and would be reflected in the next periodic report.

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




